MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE
NORTH HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

March 4, 2002

The Board of Directors (the "Board") of the North Harris County Regiond Water Authority (the
"Authority") met in regular session, open to the public, a 7:00 p.m. on the 4" day of March, 2002, at the
Ponderosa Fire Station, 17061 Rolling Creek, Houston, Texas, the regular meeting place within the
boundaries of the Authority; whereupon, theroll was caled of the duly congtituted officers and members of
the Board, to-wit:

Lenox A. Sigler Presdent

Jm Pulliam Vice President
Ron Graham Secretary

Kdly P. Feder Treasurer

Alan J. Rend| Assistant Secretary

All members of the Board were present, thus congtituting a quorum. Also attending the meeting
were.  Mr. Ed Shackelford, P.E., Generd Manager for the Authority; Ms. Cynthia Plunkett, Financid
Assgant for the Authority; Ms. BarbaraPayne of Payne Communications, communications coordinator for
the Authority; Mr. Gene Shepherd of Legg Mason Wood Walker, Inc., financid advisor for the Authority;
Messrs. Alan Potok, P. E., Michael Baugher, P.E. and David Dow, P.E. of Turner Collie & Braden, Inc.
("TC&B"), Program Manager and dternate source study engineering consultants for the Authority;
Messrs. Gary Smith, P.E. and Nathan Billiot of ARCADIS WSBC, Program Manager for the Authority;
Mr. Wayne Ahrens, P.E. of Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation ("Dannenbaum”), on-cal engineering
consultant for the Authority; Ms. Paris Achen of the1960 Sun; Ms. Kim Canon of theHouston Chronicle;
Mrs. Marcie Fesder; and Ms. RobinS. Bobbitt and Mr. Andrew P. Johnson, attorneys, and
Ms. Brooke T. Dold, pardegd, of Johnson Radcliffe Petrov & Bobbitt PLLC, attorneysfor the Authority.
Numerous members of the public were d so present at themeeting. A copy of thesign-in sheetsfor thosein
attendance is attached hereto.

WHEREUPON, the meeting was called to order and evidence was presented that public notice of
the meeting had been given in compliance with the law. The posted notices of the meeting are attached
hereto.

DIRECTOR COMMENT

Director Sigler stated that the Board has come under alot of criticism over the past two (2) years
concerning the Authority's search for a source of water. Director Sigler noted that the Board has been
exclusvely negotiating with the City of Houston (the"COH") over the past five (5) monthsto obtain awater
supply contract for the Authority. Director Sigler Sated that the Board does not have a"Plan B" to fdll
back on if an agreement cannot be reached with the COH. Director Sigler suggested that if anyonein the
audience has an ideafor an aternate plan for awater supply source to please contact the Authority.



Director Sigler then asked the audience to direct their comments and statementsto the Board asa
whole and not to individua Board members. At Director Sigler'srequest, Ms. Bobhitt then reviewed with
the audience the Policies and Proceduresfor Public Comment, previoudy adopted and implemented by the
Board, acopy of which is attached hereto.

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Board firgt recognized Mr. Roy Lackey of Harris County Municipa Utility Didrict No. 368
and the City of Tomball, who stated that the Authority needs a spirit of cooperation and encouraged
everyone to work together. Mr. Lackey expressed concern over Director Sigler's comment that the
Authority does not have an dternate plan for asource of water and the potentia impact of such statement
on negotiations with the COH.

Mr. Nicholas Fava of Banmd Utility Digtrict commented that the new Board had held three (3)
meetings and that the two (2) new members of the Board had not yet expressed their goals and objectives
for the Authority. Mr. Fava asked what the Board was prepared to do to prevent the utility digtrict
customers within the Authority from paying the $3.00 disincentive fee to the Harris-Galveston Coastal
Subsidence Didtrict (the"HGCSD") next year.

Mr. William Papp of Harris County Water Control and Improvement District No. 132 commented
that the Board's Policiesand Proceduresfor Public Comment are necessary and commended the Board for
implementing such Policies and Procedures. Mr. Papp urged that Robert's Rules of Order be utilized to
conduct Board meetings. Mr. Papp asked if the Board members could use more microphonesto enable
the audience to hear their comments. Mr. Papp then stated that at the specia meeting of February 25,
2002, Director Sigler referred to the Authority's congtituents as the 400,000 people living within the
Authority and not the 158 utility districtslocated within the Authority. Mr. Papp stressed to the Board that
the utility digtricts are the Authority's congtituents and to whom the Authority will provide surface water.

The Board then recognized Mr. Mike Thomason, a concerned citizen and resident of
gngle-member Voting Digtrict No. 5 and Harris County Municipa Utility Digtrict No. 82. Mr. Thomason
stated that he had seen an e mail between Director Fesder and former director Clint Moore, in which
Director Fesder wasasking for directionsfrom Mr. Moore. Mr. Thomason expressed his concern that the
person el ected to serve on the Board was not making his own decisonsand that Mr. Moorewas adefacto
representative for sngle-member Voting Didtrict No. 5.

The Board next recognized Mr. Carl Schwenker, who deferred his comments until later in the
mesting.

Mr. Gerdd Jozwiak of Harris County Municipa Utility Digtrict No. 43 was then recognized and
dated that he agreeswith thefifteen (15) minutelimitation for public comments. Mr. Jozwiak indicated that
the Town Hall meeting format and the respective Board members meeting with the utility digtrictsin each
voting digtrict was mutually beneficid and encouraged the Board to conduct such meetings. Mr. Jozwiak
specificaly requested that Director Fesder schedulea Town Hall meeting in Single-member Voting Didtrict
No. 5.



CONSENT AGENDA

Director Sigler next briefly reviewed with the Board the items reflected on the Consent Agenda.
Director Sigler explained that this portion of the agenda dea swith routine matters of the Board, and that no
separate discussion of suchitemswill occur unlessaBoard member or amember of the public requeststhat
an item be moved to the regular portion of the agenda.

Director Sigler then stated that the firgt item on the Consent Agendais gpprova of the minutes of
the regular mesting of February 12, 2002, the specia mestings of December 28, 2001 and February 8,
2002 and the executive sessions of April 25, 2001, June 12, 2001 and December 28, 2001. Director
Sigler noted that approva of the minutes of the specid meeting of February 8, 2002 would need to be
ratified at the March meeting, since gpprova of such minutes was inadvertently omitted from tonight's
agenda.

Director Sigler sated that the second item on the Consent Agendais approva of aninety (90) day
extenson of the Rdiant Energy letter of intent to join the Authority's groundwater reduction plan (the
"GRP"), acopy of which is attached hereto.

Upon mation by Director Rendl, seconded by Director Pulliam, after full discusson and thequestion
being put to the Board, the Board voted unanimoudy to gpprove the minutes of the regular meeting of
February 12, 2002, the specia meetings of December 28, 2001 and February 8, 2002 and the executive
sessions of April 25, 2001, June 12, 2001 and December 28, 2001 and to approve the extension of the
Reliant Energy letter of intent to join the Authority.

FINANCIAL REPORT

Director Sigler then recognized Ms. Plunkett, who noted that due to the change of the Authority's
regular meeting to the first Monday of the month, the Financid Report, including the monthly investment
report and the budget comparison for the month of February, will be presented at the April mesting. Ms.
Plunkett reported that nine (9) delinquent pumpage fee letters, copies of which are attached hereto, had
been mailed on February 14™ and that eight (8) well ownershad paid their fees. Ms. Plunkett reported that
Ms. Bobbitt is researching a question about whether the Woodwind Homeowners Association was
autometically excluded from the Authority when Harris County Municipa Utility Didirict No. 261 petitioned
to be excluded from the Authority. Ms. Plunkett then reviewed a list of unpaid 2001 fourth quarter
pumpage fees, a copy of which is attached hereto.

STATUS OF ACTIVITIESBY COMMUNICATIONSPUBLIC INFORMATION
COORDINATOR

Ms. Paynereported that the Authority'sWeb site had gpproximately 28,449 hitsin February, which
represents an average of 981 hitsper day and that on fourteen (14) daysduring the month, therewere more
than 1,000 hits per day. Ms. Payne added that therewasarecord 1,900 hitson February 27, 2002. Ms.
Payne went on to report that the Web steis being updated and that there had been some difficulty withthe
noticefor tonight'smeeting. Ms. Payne stated that shewill findizetheAction Report after tonight'smesting,
which will cover the Board's last three (3) meetings. Ms. Payne stated that the Authority's contact list is

3



being expanded to include chambers of commerce in the area, homeowners associations ("HOAS") and
local neighborhoods. Director Sigler asked how many HOAs were on the contect list. Ms. Payne
responded that there are currently 40 to 50 HOASs on the Authority's contact list.

PROGRAM MANAGER'S REPORT

Mr. Shackelford then asked Mr. Baugher to present the Program Manager's Report, a copy of
which is attached hereto.

Mr. Baugher fird reviewed with the Board the Satus of the various engineering Sudies currently in
progress. Mr. Baugher reported that the fina draft of the GIS Project Manua and database had been
submitted to the Texas Water Devel opment Board (the "TWDB™) on August 30, 2001 for review and that
the Program Management Team is till waiting for TWDB comments prior to findizing the project.

Mr. Baugher then reported that Dannenbaum'sfina report on the Reliant Energy Reuse Study had
been received by the Authority on January 25, 2002.

Mr. Baugher next reported thet thefina copy of Alexander Engineering, Inc.'s("Alexander™) Water
Reclamation/Reuse Study was submitted to the Authority on February 7, 2002.

Mr. Baugher went on to report that the Program Management Team is till waiting for comments
from the TWDB concerning the Authority's Water Conservation Plan prepared by Brown & Gay
Engineers, Inc.

Mr. Baugher next reported that the GRP was still on target to be submitted to the HGCSD on or
about July 3, 2002. Mr. Baugher reported that he had prepared a scheduletimeline for preparation,
findization and submisson of the Authority's GRP that will be reviewed by Mr. Shackelford.

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

Mr. Shackelford then continued with the presentation of his General Manager's Report, a copy of
whichisattached hereto. Mr. Shackdford first reviewed the GRP schedule/timelinewith the Board, acopy
of which is attached hereto.

Mr. Shackelford next announced that the Authority will hold GRP informationa meetings with the
legd and engineering consultants of the utility digtrict community, after which informationa meetingswill be
held in each of the single-member voting didricts. Mr. Shackelford then presented the following list of
tentative meeting dates, including a general sesson on May 28, 2002 a the Champion Forest Baptist
Church and Sngle-member voting didtrict meetingson May 30, 2002, June 4, 2002, June 6, 2002, June 11,
2002 and June 13, 2002. Mr. Shackelford noted that the draft of the proposed GRP will be available on
the Authority's Web ste.

Director Fesder asked whether the water digtricts to be included in the initid integrated water
systemn plan had been identified. Mr. Shackelford responded that the engineerswere currently working on
that aspect of the plan.



Ms. Kathie Ware of Fountainhead Municipa Utility District asked for the dates of the meetingsto
be held in sngle-member voting digtricts. Mr. Shacke ford explained that the specific schedule for each of
the meetings to be held in the Sngle-member voting digtricts has not yet been determined.

Mr. Larry LaHaie of Northwest Harris County Municipa Utility Digtrict No. 15 asked whether the
presentations would be the same at each of the single-member voting district meetings. Mr. Shackeford
responded that the meetings would al be the same and that he and the Program Management engineers
would do the presentations.

Mr. Shackelford then reported that atechnical workshop for the Board is scheduled for Saturday,
March 23, 2002, at the Ponderosa Fire Station from 9:30 am. until 2:00 p.m. Mr. Shackelford stated that
Mr. Steve Bresnen, the Authority's lobbyist, has been asked to attend such meeting and make a brief
presentation.

Mr. Shackelford reported that comments on the GIS Project Manua and database had been
received from the TWDB earlier in the day and will be reviewed by Mr. Baugher.

Mr. Shackelford next reported that he was scheduled to meet with the board of directorsof Harris
County Municipa Utility Digtrict No. 22, dong with board members from severd other didtrictsin Voting
Digtrict No. 3, on March 12, 2002 at 7:00 p.m.

Mr. Shackelford next announced that the Association of Water Board Directors- Texasisholding
abreakfast on April 10" at the Wyndham Greenspoint Hotel and asked that the directorslet Ms. Sagstetter
know if they desire to attend the breskfast.

Next, Mr. Shackelford referred to an e-mail dated March 1, 2002 from Ms. Sara Culbreth of the
COH, a copy of which is attached hereto. Mr. Shackelford explained that the COH has revised its
plan/proposa for providing surface water and that he anticipates receiving the revised principles from the
COH in the near future. Director Graham stated that he heard rumors that the COH offered the West
Harris County Regiond Water Authority a"take or pay" contract. Mr. Shackelford responded that it was
his understanding that such contract proposal asoincluded awater reservation fee with paymentsto begin
onthefirg takevolumein 2003. Mr. Shackeford noted that thiswas not the proposa heisexpecting from
the COH. Director Pulliam asked whether the consultantswereformulatinga”Plan B" in case an agreement
cannot be reached with the COH for obtaining surface water. Director Graham inquired regarding the
Authority's deadline for negotiations with the COH. Mr. Shackeford responded that he has madeit clear
to the COH thet adraft contract is needed in March or the Authority will haveto look & other optionsfor
obtaining surface water. Mr. Shackelford added that he and Mr. Potok had made severd calsregarding
what water might be available from the Brazos River Authority and that they were dso talking with Reliant
Energy about the availability of their Brazos River water rights. Director Pulliam asked if the Authority has
enoughtimetolook at other possible supply optionsand still meet the GRPfiling deadline. Mr. Shackdford
responded that the Authority's GRP will be based on a COH ddivery until it is determined that another
sourcewill be utilized. Mr. Shackelford added that awater supply contract must bein place a thetimethe
find GRP is submitted to the HGCSD. Mr. Shackdford further explained that if delays are incurred in
obtaining awater supply contract, the Authority must be ableto demongtratethat it has used its best efforts



to obtain a water supply contract in order to possibly obtain additional time for compliance from the
HGCSD.

Mr. Shackelford next reviewed a memo to the Board concerning the proposed assignment of the
Water Supply Contract between the City of Jersey Village ("Jersey Village') and the COH, acopy of which
isattached hereto. Mr. Shackelford added that heand Ms. Payne, in conjunction with Jersey Village, were
scheduling a public forum for the resdents of Jersey Village concerning the proposed contract assgnment
the first week of April a the Jersey Village Civic Center.

Mr. Shackdford then asked the Board to select adate for the Authority's Directors Reception. The
Board agreed to schedule the reception on Monday, April 22, 2002, from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. at the
Authority's office.

Mr. Shackelford next reported that the Ponderosa Fire Station and the other designated meeting
placeswithin the boundaries of the Authority werenot available on April 1% and asked that the Board select
another date for the regular April meeting. A brief discusson regarding a meeting date and mesting
locationsthen ensued. Upon motion by Director Rendl, seconded by Director Pulliam, after full discussion
and the question being put to the Board, the Board unanimoudy voted to hold the April meeting on
Tuesday, April 2, 2002, at the Ponderosa Fire Station.

Mr. Shackelford then informed the Board that Labor Day would be a conflict with the September
meeting date. The Board asked Mr. Shackelford to investigate whether the Ponderosa Fire Station is
available on September 9™,

Director Graham asked if anyone had looked for a more central meeting place for the Board
mesetings. Director Rendl explained that when the Authority first established the PonderosaFire Station as
the regular meeting place of the Board, such a search was undertaken, but that most potentid meeting
locations could not commit to the same monthly meeting dete.

Upon motion by Director Pulliam, seconded by Director Fesder, after full discusson and the
guestion being put to the Board, the Board voted unanimoudly to gpprove the General Manager's Report.

DIRECTOR ITEMS

A brief discussion then ensued regarding proposed amendments to the Procedura Rules of the
Authority. Mr. Shackelford stated that hewould liketo discussany such amendmentsat afuture meeting of
the Board. Director Fesder indicated that he would like to suggest severa revisons to the Procedurd
Rules. Mr. Shackdford suggested that adraft of the proposed amendments be distributed to the Board and
comments obtained prior to consideration by the Board.

Director Graham suggested that the blue public comment card be revised to include a place to
request awritten response from the Authority.

A discussion of theterm of office of the Board President then ensued. Director Graham explained
that he had asked for thisitem to be placed on the agenda and suggested that the term of office for the

6



President belimited to two (2) consecutive years. Upon motion by Director Graham, seconded by Director
Pulliam, after full discusson and the question being put to the Board, the Board voted asfollows: four (4)
votesin favor and one (1) vote opposed, with Director Rendl voting in opposition, to limit theterm of office
of the President of the Board to no more than two (2) consecutive years. Ms. Bobbitt noted that the
limitation of the term of office of the President will need to be reflected in the Procedura Rules.

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Board again recognized Mr. Carl Schwenker, who declined comment.

Ms. Dinorah Gonzdes of Coats Rose Yde Ryman & Lee inquired if the HGCSD would be
receptive to a GRP that included both a Plan A and Plan B water supply scenario. Mr. Shackelford
responded that the Authority had not addressed the matter with the HGCSD, but that he will be meeting
with Mr. Neighbors later in the week and will make the inquiry.

The Board then recognized Mr. Marvin Feder of Reid Road Municipa Utility Digtrict No. 1, who
stated that he was not related to Director Fesder.

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2™ day of April, 2002.

/s'Ron Graham

Secretary, Board of Directors

(SEAL)

K:\NHCRWA\Minutes-3-4-02-Regular.DOC/#853.0000



